
 
 

1200 Wilmette Avenue 
Wilmette, IL  60091 

 

IF YOU ARE A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY AND NEED SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE 
 IN AND/OR ATTEND A VILLAGE OF WILMETTE PUBLIC MEETING, PLEASE NOTIFY THE VILLAGE  

MANAGER’S OFFICE AT (847) 853-7509 OR TDD 7-1-1 AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. 

 
  

NOTICE OF MEETING 
of the  

APPEARANCE REVIEW COMMISSION 
OF THE VILLAGE OF WILMETTE 

 
Thursday, March 7, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
 

 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order 

II. Approval of Minutes 

• Minutes of the Appearance Review Commission of February 5, 2024 

III. Consent Agenda 

• 415 ½ 4th Street, Center for Oriental Medicine, Window Sign 

IV. Cases 

• 2024-AR-11, 1824 Wilmette Avenue, Illinois Center for Digestive and Liver 
Health, Certificate 

• 2024-AR-12, 2716 Old Glenview Road, Wilmette Baseball Association, 
Certificate 

• 2024-AR-10, 1100 Laramie Avenue, Loyola Academy, Certificate 

• 2024-AR-04, 1837 Wilmette Avenue, Wilmette Gas Inc., Certificate/Sign 
Variation 

V. Public Comment 

VI. New Business 

VII. Old Business 

VIII. Adjournment 

 

Devan Castellano, Chair 



 

 
1200 Wilmette Avenue 

WILMETTE, ILLINOIS 60091 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
         Appearance Review Commission 

 
February 5, 2024 

7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

1200 Wilmette Avenue  
Members Present:  Richard Brill 

Jeffrey Saad 
Doug Johnson 
Jonathan Zee 
Nada Andric  
Richard DeLeo 

 
Members Absent:   Devan Castellano 
 
Staff Present:   Kate McManus, Planner III-AICP 
    
Guests:   Ben Leher, Wayfair 
    Alyssa Low 
    Amy Tsao, Wayfair 
    Kevin Lindberg, Wayfair 

Hannah McCallum, WS Development 
Sarah Andrews, WS Development 

     
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Acting Chair Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Brill moved to approve the January 11, 2024 Appearance Review Commission minutes. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Zee.  Voting yes: Brill, Johnson, Saad, and Zee. Abstain: 
Andric and DeLeo. Voting no: none. The motion carried. 
 
III.     CONSENT AGENDA 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 2 
 

 
3520 Lake Avenue         Jimmy John’s 
    
Ms. McManus introduced the request for an Appearance Review Certificate for a new conforming 
wall sign and tenant sign on the existing ground sign. 
 
There were no comments or questions.  
 
Commissioner Brill moved to approve the request for a new wall and tenant sign. Commissioner DeLeo 
seconded the motion. Voting yes: all. Voting no: none. The motion carried. 
 
3520 Lake Avenue         Kenny the Kleener 
 
Ms. McManus introduced the request for an Appearance Review Certificate for a new conforming 
wall sign and tenant sign on the existing ground sign. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Brill, Ms. McManus said this will be a second location 
for the business and the Green Bay location will remain. 
 
Commissioner Brill moved to approve the request for a new wall and tenant sign. Commissioner DeLeo 
seconded the motion. Voting yes: all. Voting no: none. The motion carried. 
 
IV.     CASES 
 
2024-AR-07               Plaza del Lago                                
1515 Sheridan Road                                                  Certificate 
 
Ms. McManus introduced the case noting that it is a request for Appearance Review Certificate for 
minor revisions to the site plan including hardscape and landscaping and a new door opening on the 
east elevation. 
 
Ms. McCallum and Ms. Andrews introduced themselves noting that the proposed changes are 
relatively minor, and they highlighted each adjustment on the plans. Ms. Andrews said the north 
parking lot was initially not in the scope, but they are now adding an accessible ramp and some striping 
changes to that area. She reviewed the demo plan and landscape and hardscape changes. She said a 
sidewalk and landscape strip will be added and they are proposing additional bollards at the pedestrian 
crossing. A new door will be added to Building B to meet fire code regulations.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Johnson, Ms. Andrews said the bollards are removable, 
black iron, and flush to the ground.  
 
Ms. Andrews said there are currently parking spaces flush up against the arcade, so they are proposing 
a 5-foot sidewalk to transition to the ADA ramp. Handicap parking spaces will be relocated. She 
reviewed the planting changes including changing boxwood to holly. Most changes are a result of plant 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 3 
 

selections not doing well with snow removal and minor aesthetic changes. She said no invasive species 
are proposed and provided a rendering.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Andric, Ms. Andrews said the edge of the landscape is 
brick. 
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. Andrews said there will be a cover on the 
bollard to prevent dirt and water. 
 
Ms. Andrews said that during permit review, it was evident that a new door was needed for Building 
B to provide access to a sprinkler riser and secondary stair. The proposed hollow metal door will be 
painted bronze to match the doors on the north façade.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Zee, Ms. Andrews said the bollard is black aluminum. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Andric, Ms. Andrews said the bollard is not illuminated. 
 
Commissioner Brill confirmed the only change in the rendering is a different evergreen hedge. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Zee, Ms. Andrews said the color of the handrail is black. 
 
Commissioner Saad said the changes are very subtle. In response to a question from Commissioner 
Saad, Ms. Andrews said the arcade entry has a flush transition from the curb and there is no grade 
change from the parking area. There is a 2-foot landscape buffer that is continuous. Commissioner 
Saad suggested adding a break to prevent people from walking through it. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Andric, Ms.  Andrews said the plaza is not changing and 
reviewed the materials. She said there is no additional illumination.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner DeLeo, Ms. Andrews said the lighting in the median 
walkway is existing and they are still considering landscape lighting. An irrigation system is planned. 
Commissioner DeLeo said the parking space adjacent to the alley appears difficult to backout. He 
suggested removing that spot. Ms. Andrews said they do not want to lose additional parking, but they 
will review the parking space. 
 
Ms. McCallum noted that all the spots in that location have the same condition backing into the alley. 
 
Commissioner Andric asked about the previously approved sign. 
 
Acting Chair Johnson asked that they verify there are no visual obstructions in the alley. 
 
Ms. McManus noted that the proposed changes were reviewed by the Village’s Engineering 
Department, and they had no comments or concerns.   
 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 4 
 

Acting Chair Johnson noted that the path is winding and suggested additional lighting. 
 
Commissioner Saad pointed out that the ramp needs a step on one side. 
 
Commissioner DeLeo moved to grant an Appearance Review Certificate for changes to the site plan, 
landscaping, hardscape, and a new door opening subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Parking spaces adjacent to the alley should be further evaluated to verify there are no visual 
obstructions or traffic concerns. 

2. Additional lighting should be added to the pedestrian walkway and return to the Commission 
for review.  

3. One step should be added to the proposed ramp to provide access from the side. 
4. A break in the ADA ramp landscape buffer should be added. 

 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Brill. Voting yes: Commissioners Andric, Brill, DeLeo, 
Johnson, Saad, and Zee. Voting no: none. The motion carried. 
 
2024-AR-06               Eden’s Plaza                               
3200-3232 Lake Avenue                       Certificate 
 
Ms. McManus introduced the case stating that it is a request for minor revisions to the site plan and 
landscaping. 
 
Ms. McCallum said there will be planting updates to enhance the entrance. As a result of the Skokie 
shared use path, they are proposing bike parking and sidewalk widening. Two new seating areas are 
proposed.  
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. Andrews said there will be a fence along the 
walk by Walgreens as previously approved.  
 
Commissioner Andric asked about the previously approved sign. Ms. Andrews said landscaping will 
also help identify the entry. 
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. Andrews said the sign has not been stained 
yet due to the weather.  
 
Ms. McCallum said one additional tree will be removed and she reviewed the hardscape improvements 
which tie into the new path. There are new bike racks, and the sidewalk will be widened from 5 feet 
to 7 feet. They are adding seating areas to building 2 and building 3. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Andric, Ms. Andrews said the seating areas will have 
removable tables and chairs by the tenant. She said planters are proposed to provide separation. She 
said the seating will be removed in the winter. 
 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 5 
 

In response to a question from Commissioner DeLeo, Ms. Andrews said there are no changes to the 
light fixtures.  
  
Ms. McCallum said the previously proposed trees were blocking the Walgreens sign so they will be 
shifted, and there will be enhanced landscaping at the entrance. Rock cobble is proposed at the 
stormwater system. The planters will be planted with tall grass.  There are minor ground cover 
changes, and a row of juniper trees are proposed along the trash enclosure. 
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. Andrews said the planters are concrete. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner DeLeo, Ms. Andrews said building 2 already has an 
outdoor seating area and they may consider EV charging stations in the future. They will come back to 
the Commission if any of the islands change. Ms. McCallum said most of the parking lot is not changing 
and the shopping cart corrals are still being proposed. Ms. McManus reminded him that they are only 
showing what is proposed to change not everything else that has previously been approved. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Andric, Ms. McCallum said the parking lot will be 
repaved and the lighting was part of the previous approval. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Saad, Ms. Andrews said most of the trees proposed for 
removal were in poor condition, but tree 45 is in good condition. She said they are adding a number 
of trees and are in compliance with the tree preservation ordinance.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Zee, Ms. Andrews said tree 45 is in good condition but 
is in the location of the patio improvements. They will be adding 5 feet on the east side. 
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. Andrews said the tree would not survive with 
the proposed work. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Saad, Ms. Andrews said they prefer not to remove a 
parking space.   
 
Ms. McManus said the tree removals were reviewed by the Village’s Tree Preservation Officer who 
noted that the removal requires a fee but is compliance with the ordinance.  
 
Commissioner Johnson said the tree would provide shade on the patio. Ms. Andrews said there is an 
existing overhang that provides shade. Acting Chair Johnson encouraged them to preserve the tree.  
 
Commissioner Saad said he cannot support the application due to the number of trees removed, 
noting that tree 45 is in good condition.  
 
Commissioner Brill moved to grant an Appearance Review Certificate for site and landscaping revisions 
as submitted.  
 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 6 
 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner DeLeo. Voting yes: Commissioners Andric, Brill, DeLeo, 
Johnson, and Zee. Voting no: Saad. The motion carried. 
 
2024-AR-05                       Wayfair                                
3232 Lake Avenue            Sign Variation/Certificate 
   
Ms. McManus introduced the case stating that the request has two components, a sign variation for a 
wall sign and a certificate for a mural. The sign requires a quantity variation for an additional wall sign; 
a variation was previously granted for the wall sign and canopy sign. The proposed wall sign was shown 
on renderings previously but wasn’t part of previous approval. She said there are no issues with 
coverage, only the quantity of wall signs.  
 
Ms. Tsao said the east façade has the main entry where the café is also located. There is an outdoor 
patio and the sign logo and font were recently finalized. The Porch sign is black, non-illuminated 
channel letters, under the awning and above the door.  
 
Commissioner Zee said the sign is somewhat confusing given its proximity to the main entrance and 
seems forgotten. Ms. Tsao said the sign is set back a little and provides access to the restaurant from 
the outside. She said most customers will enter the restaurants from the store’s interior. 
Commissioner Zee questioned how legible the sign will be.  
 
Mr. Lindberg said the Porch is important to the brand and they are investing in branded coffee cups 
and other items with the Porch name. Food is part of the experience, and they want customers to stay 
and relax and the porch will be a meeting place. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Andric, Mr. Lindberg said the restaurant’s hours will be 
the same as the store hours.  
  
In response to a question from Commissioner Brill, Ms. Tsao said the restaurant name is a reference 
to the home and a gathering place outside. She said most of the seating is inside with 20 seats on the 
patio. 
 
Commissioner Saad noted that there is a hole in the top of the sign but not the bottom and cautioned 
that there may be steaks on the sign.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner DeLeo Ms. Tsao said there are planters indicated on the 
site plan that define the space. There is a small path to the front door of the restaurant and a crosswalk 
in front of the main door. There are also planters along the street. 
 
Acting Chair Johnson likes the concept and said the letter addressing the standards was very detailed. 
He said the unusual circumstances of the building and site support the request and the sign is subtle. 
 
 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 7 
 

Commissioner DeLeo moved to recommend granting a sign variation to display an additional wall sign 
on the east elevation. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Andric. Voting yes: Commissioners Andric, Brill, DeLeo, 
Johnson, Saad, and Zee. Voting no: None. The motion carried. 
 
Commissioner Saad moved to authorize the chairman to approve the case report for the Village 
Board’s February 27th meeting.  Commissioner Zee seconded the motion. Commissioners Andric, Brill, 
DeLeo, Johnson, Saad, and Zee. Voting no: None. The motion carried. 
 
Ms. McManus introduced the request for an Appearance Review Certificate for a new mural on the 
north elevation of the Wayfair building. She said the Commission provided a preliminary review of a 
concept of a mural a couple months ago and the Commission provided general feedback but did not 
vote on the matter. A mural is not a sign and therefore the request is for a certificate, not a variation. 
The Commission should look at the mural as a design element and consider its appearance.  
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. McManus said the mural is next to where 
the former pinwheel design was and on the wall where a landscape climbing wall is proposed.  
 
Mr. Lindberg said he represents Wayfair’s brand experience and introduced the mural artist, Alyssa 
Low. He reviewed the thought process for the mural and said Wayfair saw an opportunity to create 
public art with the large wall space that was available. Wayfair is the sponsor and is willing to invest in 
the mural as public art. He said the mural enhances the plaza and creates a more welcoming space by 
softening the area and making it a destination. The large volume on the north wall could be broken up 
more with a colorful and vibrant opportunity. They desired an inclusivity concept with different people 
and different styles that speaks to the home and community. The mural is very colorful and joyful that 
both children and adults can relate to. They were looking for a design that was fresh and modern and 
not too traditional. The proposed design is fun to explore with layers and references to Wilmette and 
Chicago. It speaks to the home but not the Wayfair brand specifically. They wanted an artist that was 
local and desired a bold and graphic style that felt new. 
 
Ms. Low introduced herself and said she lives in Chicago and is from Long Grove. She showed examples 
of her other work and said her style is a celebration of color, shape, and composition. She has 
collaborated with other organizations using a geometric style. She uses thoughts and concepts in their 
purest form and combines them with other objects to create a narrative. The proposed mural is a 
celebration of community, people, and interaction, and celebrating small moments.  
 
Mr. Lindberg said there are many details to explore, and you see different things each time you visit.  
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. McManus said this would be approval for 
this specific mural, not just the concept of a mural. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner DeLeo, McManus said a mural is not considered a sign 
and the approval is specifically for this proposed size and location. The Commission should look at the 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 8 
 

appearance and design.  She said the public art at Optima was part of the PUD process, so it did not 
go to the Appearance Review Commission. To her knowledge, the Commission has not seen a similar 
request. The mural should be looked at as a design element and part of the building.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Saad, Ms. McManus said she is not aware of the ad hoc 
committee discussion of the Veteran’s Park mural.  
 
Acting Chair Johnson noted that this would not be an approval of public art in general, just a design 
element of the Wayfair building similar to the previous pinwheel design. 
 
Commissioner DeLeo said the scale and colors of the Wayfair building were previously approved and 
are subtle and complimentary. Now a new element is being introduced that is different.  He said he 
would like more information on how the Commission should review murals. He said while he 
appreciates the effort, but he questioned the message of the mural. He said the image is abstract and 
there is a lot going on.  
 
Commissioner Andric said this is considered place making and she is grateful to Wayfair for this effort. 
The building is commercial and instead of adding more signage, they are creating an interesting 
element. She said the mural is a fantastic idea and art should not be criticized but celebrated. The 
concept reflects the home and what is happening inside the building. She expressed concern with the 
whiteness of the background and that it may get dingy.   
 
Commissioner DeLeo said the mural will be in the shade.   
 
Commissioner Saad said he was disappointed when the colorful pinwheels were removed leaving a 
giant white wall. The mural makes the elevation more than just a Wayfair store and is not just a random 
piece of art. The artist is established, and he appreciates the simplicity and style of the graphics.  
 
Commissioner Brill said the building is very tasteful and very Wilmette, and the mural is huge and 
relatively permanent that will be seen by everyone in a prominent location. Some residents will love 
it, and some will be confused by it. He said the mural doesn’t depict Wayfair or Wilmette. 
 
Commissioner Zee said he appreciate the design and it is fresh and beautiful. He said the mural adds 
interest and character to an area of the building he had concerns about. The addition of the mural is a 
huge gain with simple, accessible abstract forms, and subtle hints that make it easy to understand.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Zee, Ms. Low said the mural will be painted and there is 
currently down washed lighting. Mr.  Lindberg said the lights are installed and cascade down further 
than you might think. 
 
In response to a question from Acting Chair Johnson, Ms. Low agreed that the renderings look bright 
white, but the background white will be the same as the approved white building. The building will be 
the canvas. 
 



 

February 5, 2024 Appearance Review Commission DRAFT Page 9 
 

Acting Chair Johnson complimented the mural and said he is supportive of the building color as the 
background. He had concerns about the bright white depicted in the rendering.  
 
Commissioner Andric said the mural will need touch up and maintenance. 
 
Commissioner Saad moved to approve an Appearance Review Certificate for a mural on the north 
elevation of the Wayfair store subject to the following condition: 
 
1. A maintenance plan should be submitted prior to permit issuance. 

 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Andric. Voting yes: Commissioners Andric, Johnson, Saad, 
and Zee. Voting no: Brill and DeLeo. The motion carried. 
 
V. Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 
 

VI. New Business 

There was no new business discussed. 
 

VII. Old Business 

There was no old business discussed. 
 

VIII. Adjournment 

At 8:39 p.m., Commissioner DeLeo moved to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Brill. The vote was as follows: all ayes.  The motion carried. 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
Kate McManus 
Planner III - AICP 

 

 
                               

 



 
 

1200 Wilmette Avenue 
Wilmette, IL  60091 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (847) 853-7550 
DEPARTMENT TDD 7-1-1 

February 29, 2024 
 
To:  Chair Castellano and the Appearance Review Commission 
 
From:   Kate McManus 
  Planner III - AICP 
 
Re:  Consent Agenda for March 7, 2024 

 
Attached is a conforming proposal.  The Commission should determine whether this proposal 
meets the Standards of Review for an Appearance Review Certificate.  If you would like to remove 
an item from the Consent Agenda, please bring it to my attention by noon on Thursday, March 7, 
2024, and I will notify the petitioner to be present at the meeting to discuss the proposal. 
 
2024-AR-13 A Center for Oriental Medicine 415 ½ 4th Street 
 
The petitioner wishes to install 1 new window sign for an existing business.  
 

Sign Ordinance Proposed Sign  

A business use may display one primary 
sign per street frontage. 1 window sign is 
permitted as a secondary sign. 

The business has 1 street frontage with an 
awning sign. 1 window sign is proposed for the 
ground level business.  

Window signs are allowed 10% coverage. The proposed window sign has 10% coverage. 
 

The maximum amount of information 
displayed on a sign is seven items of 
information. 

The proposed sign has five items of information 
– the business name, logo, phrase, phone 
number and website. 

 
The petitioner wishes to install 1 new window sign for the existing business. The window sign consists 
of a white background, green, white and black letters and a green and blue logo. The sign will be 
vinyl applied to the outside of the glass.   
 
Applicable Sections of the Wilmette Zoning Ordinance: 
16.10(k) stated the regulations for window signs 
 



415 1/2 4th Street

Notes0 150 300
ft

Print Date: 2/29/2024

Disclaimer: The GIS Consortium and MGP Inc. are not liable for any use, misuse, modification or disclosure of any map provided under applicable law.  This map is for general information purposes only. Although the information is believed to be generally accurate, errors

may exist and the user should independently confirm for accuracy. The map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering design. A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine precise location boundaries on the ground.

mcmanusk
Polygon



Sign will be vinyl, applied to the outside of the window.  It will have a white background in front 
of the image and text.  



Report to the Appearance Review Commission 

from the  

Department of Community Development 

 

Case Number: 2024-AR-11 

 

 

Property: 1824 Wilmette Avenue 

 

 

Zoning District: NR, Neighborhood Retail Business 

 

 

Petitioner: Illinois Center for Digestive and Liver Health 

 

 

Request: The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate to 

remodel the existing storefront including removal of awnings, 

expanding existing window openings and replacement of 

storefront windows. 

 

 

Applicable Provisions of 3.5, Appearance Review Commission Powers 

Ordinances: 5.7, Appearance Review Certificate 

 

 

Meeting Date:    March 7, 2024 

 

 

Date of Application: January 16, 2024 

 

 

Notices: Certificate of Posting dated, February 20, 2024 

 

 

Report Prepared By: Kate McManus 

 Planner III - AICP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Case 2024-AR-11 

 1824 Wilmette Avenue 

 

2 

Description of the Property 

The subject property is located on the north side of Wilmette Avenue in the NR, Neighborhood Retail 

Business District.  The surrounding uses include a mix of commercial uses to the west along Ridge Road 

Avenue, a mix of single and multi-family residential across the street to the south, and single family 

residential to the north and east. 

 

Description of Request 

The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate to remodel the existing storefront including 

removal of awnings, expanding existing window openings and replacement of storefront windows. The 

applicant has indicated that there are no changes proposed to the existing landscaping or parking lot. 

 

A new aluminum storefront entry is proposed with an off-set door and full height storefront windows. 

Both windows and door are proposed to be anodized aluminum in a dark bronze finish to match the 

existing windows to remain. The existing bubbled awnings on the façade will be removed.  

 

Action Required 

The Commission may grant an Appearance Review Certificate provided they determine the proposal 

meets the following standards. 

 

Appearance Review Certificate Standards of Review 

 

1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration. 

 

2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located in a 

residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in 

character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure. 

 

3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality. 

 

4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding streets 

and properties.  

 

5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of the site 

covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines. 

 

6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, existing 

vegetation, and other natural features. 

 

7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 

building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 

 

8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian environment. 

 



Case 2024-AR-11 

 1824 Wilmette Avenue 

 

3 

9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 

neighboring properties. 

 

10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum extent 

possible. 

 

11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for the 

screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent residential 

properties. 

 

12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on the 

site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 

“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 

13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous traffic 

movements. 

 

14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 

 

15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting and fences, complement the overall structure and site 

design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 

 

16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 

 

Case File Documents 

Location Maps and Plans 

 

2.1 Aerial Map 

2.2 Appearance Review Commission Submittal Dated January 9, 2024 



1824 Wilmette Avenue

NotesPrint Date: 2/29/20240 150 300
ft

Disclaimer: The GIS Consortium and MGP Inc. are not liable for any use, misuse, modification or disclosure of any map provided under applicable law.  This map is for general information purposes only. Although the

information is believed to be generally accurate, errors may exist and the user should independently confirm for accuracy. The map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering

design. A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine precise location boundaries on the ground.

mcmanusk
Polygon















Report to the Appearance Review Commission 

from the  

Department of Community Development 

 

Case Number: 2024-AR-12 

 

 

Property: 2716 Old Glenview Road 

 

 

Zoning District: R1-A, Single-Family Detached Residence District 

 

 

Petitioner: Wilmette Baseball Association 

 

 

Request: The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate for a 

new equipment shed.  

 

 

Applicable Provisions of 20-3.5, Appearance Review Commission Powers 

Ordinances: 20-5.7, Appearance Review Certificate 

 

 

Meeting Date:    March 7, 2024 

 

 

Date of Application: January 30, 2024 

 

 

Notices: Certificate of Posting dated February 20, 2024 

 

 

Report Prepared By: Kate McManus 

 Planner III - AICP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Case 2024-AR-12 

 2716 Old Glenview Road 

2 

Description of Property 

 

The Subject Property is a flag-shaped lot with 20.5’ of frontage on Old Glenview Road approximately 330’ 

east of Westmoreland Drive. The lot also has approximately 248’ of frontage on Westmoreland Drive 

approximately 290’ north of Old Glenview Road. The property is 88,000 square feet in area and improved 

with a baseball diamond, concession stand, two dug outs, two bleachers, one combination bleacher/shed, 

and gravel parking area. 

 

The Subject Property is surrounded by properties zoned R1-A, Single Family Detached Residence District, 

and improved with single-family homes. 

 

Proposal 

 

The petitioner proposes to construct a new 12’ x 14’ shed, 168 square feet in area. The structure is a 

prefabricated Tuff shed with LP Smartside siding painted white with black trim. 

 

The proposed shed conforms to the setback, height, maximum size, and floor area requirements of the 

Zoning Ordinance and required a special use because there are more than three accessory structures on 

the site. The special use was granted in January 2024. 

 

Action Required 

The Appearance Review Commission can grant an Appearance Review Certificate provided the proposal 

meets the following standards of review: 

 

Appearance Review Certificate Standards of Review 

 

1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration. 

 

2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located in a 

residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in 

character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure. 

 

3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality. 

 

4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding streets 

and properties.  

 

5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of the site 

covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines. 

 

6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, existing 

vegetation, and other natural features. 

 

7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 

building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 

 

8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian environment. 



Case 2024-AR-12 

 2716 Old Glenview Road 

3 

 

9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 

neighboring properties. 

 

10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum extent 

possible. 

 

11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for the 

screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent residential 

properties. 

 

12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on the 

site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 

“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 

13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous traffic 

movements. 

 

14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 

 

15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting and fences, complement the overall structure and site 

design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 

 

16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 

 

Case File Documents 

 

Written Correspondence 

 

1.1 Letter addressing the standards of review 

 

Location Maps and Plans 

 

2.1 Aerial Map 

2.2 Plat of Survey w/ Shed Location 

2.3 Tuff Shed Specification 

2.4 Site Photos 

2.5 Special Use Ordinance 



CCAANNNNIINNGG  &&  CCAANNNNIINNGG  LLLLCC  

11000000  SSKKOOKKIIEE  BBOOUULLEEVVAARRDD,,  SSUUIITTEE  335555  

WWIILLMMEETTTTEE,,  IILLLLIINNOOIISS  6600009911  

((884477))  885533--77004422  --  FFAAXX  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
CHRISTOPHER S. CANNING 

DIRECT DIAL NUMBER 

(847) 853-7040 

canningchris@comcast.net 

 

February 5, 2024 

 

 

VIA EMAIL 

Devan Castellano, Chair 

Appearance Review Commission 

Village of Wilmette 

c/o Kate McManus, AICP 

Planner III 

Village of Wilmette 

1200 Wilmette Avenue 

Wilmette, IL 60091 

 

 

 

Re: Wilmette Baseball Association’s Application for Appearance Review 

Certificate. 

 

Dear Chair Castellano and Members of the Appearance Review Commission: 

 

I am writing on behalf of Wilmette Baseball Association regarding its application for an 

Appearance Review Certificate for the installation of an accessory structure, specifically an 

equipment shed at Roemer Park at 2716 Old Glenview Road in Wilmette. The Village Board 

granted Wilmette Baseball’s application for a Special Use to install the accessory structure on 

January 23, 2024. Village staff will include a copy of the Ordinance approving the Special Use in 

the meeting packet. 

 

Pursuant to the Village of Wilmette Code any application for an Appearance Review 

Certificate must meet the requirements of Section 11 of the Code. As set forth more fully below, 

Sophia’s Application meets each relevant element of the Standards of Review. Section 30-5.7(d) 

of the Village Code provides in pertinent part that: 

 



 

 

February 5, 2024 

Page 2 

 

 

Approval Standards. No appearance review certificate will be granted unless the Appearance 

Review Commissions makes specific written findings based on the standards imposed by this 

section. These standards are: 

1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration. 

 

Response: All sides of the shed were considered when the application was before the Zoning 

Board and the Village Board. The Village Board adopted an Ordinance granting the Special Use 

for the shed in accordance with the plans submitted.  

 

2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located 

in a residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in 

character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure. 

 

Response: This Standard is met because the materials for the shed, specifically, manufactured 

lumber are comparable or exceed the quality of the materials of the other structures at Roemer 

Park. 

 

3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality. 

 

Response: This Standard is met since the shed will be made of manufactured lumber.  

 

4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding 

streets and properties.  

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of 

the site covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines. 

 

Response: This Standard is met since the new shed is located in a conforming location and no 

zoning variations are needed. 

 

6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, 

existing vegetation, and other natural features. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 

building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 



 

 

February 5, 2024 

Page 3 

 

 

8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian 

environment. 

 

Response: This Standard is met since the shed as designed will not encroach into the pedestrian 

environment. 

 

9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 

neighboring properties. 

 

Response: Roemer Park is screened from adjoining properties and no additional screening is 

being proposed.  

 

10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum 

extent possible. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for 

the screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent 

residential properties. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on 

the site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 

“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous 

traffic movements. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site, and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting, and fences, complement the overall structure and 

site design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 

 

Response: The shed complements the overall use of Roemer Park and the materials used for the 

shed are in keeping with the other structures at Roemer Park. 

 



 

 

February 5, 2024 

Page 4 

 

 

16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 

 

Response: Not applicable.  

 

Since Wilmette Baseball’s request for an Appearance Review Certificate meets the 

standards of review under the Village Code, Wilmette Baseball asks that the Appearance Review 

Commission recommend approval of its application. We look forward to the opportunity to 

appear at the Public Hearing on the application on March 7, 2024, and answer any questions the 

Commission may have.  

 

 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 
Christopher S. Canning    

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 



2716 Old Glenview Road

NotesPrint Date: 2/29/20240 350 700
ft

Disclaimer: The GIS Consortium and MGP Inc. are not liable for any use, misuse, modification or disclosure of any map provided under applicable law.  This map is for general information purposes only. Although the

information is believed to be generally accurate, errors may exist and the user should independently confirm for accuracy. The map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering

design. A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine precise location boundaries on the ground.

mcmanusk
Polygon

























 

 



 

 



 

 



 









Report to the Appearance Review Commission 

from the  

Department of Community Development 

 

Case Number: 2024-AR-10 

 

 

 

Property: 1100 Laramie Avenue 

 

 

 

Zoning District: R1-A, Single-Family Detached Residence District 

 

 

 

Petitioner: Loyola Academy 

 

 

 

Request: The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate for 

outdoor recreational facility lighting. 

 

 

Applicable Provisions of 20-3.5, Appearance Review Commission Powers 

Ordinances: 20-5.7, Appearance Review Certificate 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:    March 7, 2024 

 

 

 

Date of Application: February 5, 2024 

 

 

 

Notices: Certificate of Posting dated February 20, 2024 

 

 

 

Report Prepared By: Kate McManus 

 Planner III - AICP 

 

 

 

 



Case 2024-AR-10 

1100 Laramie Avenue 

2 

Description of Property 

The Subject Property is located on the east side of Laramie Avenue, from Lake Avenue to Illinois Road. 

The property has 250.59’ of frontage on Lake Avenue, 1,264.97’ of frontage on Laramie Avenue, and 558’ 

of frontage on Illinois Road. The property is approximately 854,000 square feet in area and improved with 

a two-story school, surface parking lots, tennis courts, football field, and other athletic facilities. 

To the north and west are properties zoned R1-A, Single-Family Detached Residence, and improved 

with single-family homes. To the east is the Eden’s Expressway. To the southwest are properties zoned 

NR, Neighborhood Retail, and improved with one-story commercial buildings. 

Proposal 

The petitioner proposes installing lighting to illuminate the athletic field for the purposes of allowing 

night-time use of the existing stadium and field. The proposed lighting is located on four light poles 

surrounding the field and are 80 feet in height. The proposed light fixtures are galvanized steel and 

aluminum designed with shields to limit the amount of light distribution and glare upon neighboring 

properties. 

The proposed lights were granted several zoning variations in 2024 including a special use, height 

variation, setback variation, and illumination variation. The Appearance Review Commission’s review 

is limited to the appearance of the fixtures as the lighting intensity, height, location and temperature were 

approved by the Village Board.  

Action Required 

The Appearance Review Commission can grant an Appearance Review Certificate provided the proposal 

meets the following standards of review: 

Appearance Review Certificate Standards of Review 

1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration.

2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located in a

residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in

character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure.

3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality.

4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding streets

and properties.

5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of the site

covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines.

6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, existing

vegetation, and other natural features.



Case 2024-AR-10 

 1100 Laramie Avenue 

3 

7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 

building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 

 

8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian environment. 

 

9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 

neighboring properties. 

 

10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum extent 

possible. 

 

11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for the 

screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent residential 

properties. 

 

12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on the 

site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 

“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 

13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous traffic 

movements. 

 

14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 

 

15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting and fences, complement the overall structure and site 

design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 

 

16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 

 

Case File Documents 

 

Written Correspondence 

 

1.1 Letter addressing the standards of review 

 

Location Maps and Plans 

 

2.1 Aerial Map 

2.2 Plat of Survey  

2.3 Site Plan with Light Locations 

2.4 Lighting Fixture Cut Sheet 

2.5 Pole Details 

2.6 Light Rendering 

2.7 Special Use and Variation Ordinance 



CCAANNNNIINNGG  &&  CCAANNNNIINNGG  LLLLCC  

11000000  SSKKOOKKIIEE  BBOOUULLEEVVAARRDD,,  SSUUIITTEE  335555  

WWIILLMMEETTTTEE,,  IILLLLIINNOOIISS  6600009911  

((884477))  885533--77004422  --  FFAAXX  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
CHRISTOPHER S. CANNING 

DIRECT DIAL NUMBER 

(847) 853-7040 

canningchris@comcast.net 

 

February 5, 2024 

 

 

VIA EMAIL 

Devan Castellano, Chair 

Appearance Review Commission 

Village of Wilmette 

c/o Kate McManus, AICP 

Planner III 

Village of Wilmette 

1200 Wilmette Avenue 

Wilmette, IL 60091 

 

 

 

Re: Loyola Academy Application for Appearance Review Certificate. 

 

Dear Chair Castellano and Members of the Appearance Review Commission: 

 

I am writing on behalf of Loyola Academy regarding its application for an Appearance 

Review Certificate for the installation of permanent outdoor lights at Hoerster Field in Sachs 

Stadium at 1100 Laramie Avenue in Wilmette. The Village Board granted Loyola’s application 

for a Special Use to install the permanent lights. Village staff will provide a copy of the 

Ordinance and all relevant exhibits in the meeting packet. 

 

Pursuant to the Village of Wilmette Code any application for an Appearance Review 

Certificate must meet the requirements of Section 11 of the Code.  As set forth more fully below, 

Sophia’s Application meets each relevant element of the Standards of Review. Section 30-5.7(d) 

of the Village Code provides in pertinent part that: 

 

Approval Standards. No appearance review certificate will be granted unless the Appearance 

Review Commissions makes specific written findings based on the standards imposed by this 

section. These standards are: 



 

 

February 5, 2024 

Page 2 

 

 

1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration. 

 

Response: The application is solely for the permanent light poles and lights and all sides of the 

light poles and lights were shown in the application materials and discussed before the Zoning 

Board and Village Board. The plans for the lights and poles were included in the plans submitted 

to the Village Board and the Ordinance approved the poles and lights in accordance with the 

plans submitted. 

 

2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located 

in a residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in 

character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure. 

 

Response: The light poles and lights are made of galvanized steel and aluminum and are 

comparable in character and quality to the exterior light poles currently at Loyola, if not better. 

 

3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality. 

 

Response: This Standard is met since the light poles will be made of galvanized steel and the 

light fixtures will be made of aluminum.   

 

4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding 

streets and properties.  

 

Response: The mechanical equipment that is used to operate the lights will not be visible from 

surrounding streets and properties.  

 

5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of 

the site covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines. 

 

Response: This Standard is met since the Village Board granted the Special Use for Loyola 

install permanent outdoor lighting in accordance with the plans submitted that showed the site 

and the location of the poles in relation to the lot lines.   

 

6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, 

existing vegetation, and other natural features. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 

building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 



 

 

February 5, 2024 

Page 3 

 

 

8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian 

environment. 

 

Response: This Standard is met since the location of the light poles will not encroach into the 

pedestrian environment and will not be located near any public street. 

 

9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 

neighboring properties. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum 

extent possible. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for 

the screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent 

residential properties. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on 

the site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 

“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous 

traffic movements. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 

 

Response: Not applicable. 

 

15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting and fences, complement the overall structure and 

site design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 

 

Response: This standard is met since the Village Board granted the Special Use to install the 

permanent outdoor lighting in accordance with the plans submitted showing the site design, the 

materials and size of the lights and poles.  

 



 

 

February 5, 2024 

Page 4 

 

 

16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 

 

Response: Not applicable.  

 

Since Loyola’s request for an Appearance Review Certificate meets the standards of 

review under the Village Code, Loyola asks that the Appearance Review Commission 

recommend approval of its application.   We look forward to the opportunity to appear at the 

Public Hearing on the application on March 7, 2024 and answer any questions the Commission 

may have.  

 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 
Christopher S. Canning    

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 



1100 Laramie Avenue

Notes0 500 1000
ft

Print Date: 2/29/2024

Disclaimer: The GIS Consortium and MGP Inc. are not liable for any use, misuse, modification or disclosure of any map provided under applicable law.  This map is for general information purposes only. Although the information is believed to be generally accurate, errors

may exist and the user should independently confirm for accuracy. The map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering design. A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine precise location boundaries on the ground.

mcmanusk
Polygon



1.6 SECTION 1: INTrOduCTION

Date Project Information

225 W. Ohio Street

4th Floor

Chicago, IL 60654

TEL: (312) 467-0123

FAX: (312) 467-0220

www.terraengineering.com

07-8-19 LOYOLA ACADEMY, WILMETTE, IL

PLAT OF SURVEY

2 of 2

19-135

 NG

 TB

 TB

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

#
1 Issued

Description

03-10-231 Issued

mcmanusk
Highlight

mcmanusk
Highlight

mcmanusk
Highlight

mcmanusk
Highlight

mcmanusk
Highlight

mcmanusk
Highlight

mcmanusk
Highlight



SECTION 1: INTrOduCTION 1.7

LIGHTING PLAN LAYOUT

LIGHTING PROPOSAL

Loyola Academy is proposing to install new outdoor lighting at the athletic field on its campus at 1100 Laramie 
Avenue.  The proposed lighting will be ‘state of the art’ high school-level athletic facility lighting. Loyola Academy 
has determined these improvements are necessary for the continued success of the school.  The lighting will 
be carefully and thoughtfully designed to mitigate negative impacts on nearby residential properties. Further, 
operational controls will limit usage of the lights on the field.

FEBRUARY 2023

PROJECT NAME
CITY, STATE

MAP EXHIBIT TITLE

© 2016 THE LAKOTA GROUP

PROJECT TEAM: 

PREPARED FOR: 

CLIENT

FIRM 1

FIRM 2

FIRM 3

0 30 6015
1 inch = 50 feet

L
A

r
A

M
IE

 A
V

E
N

u
E



2.12 SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN

LIGHTING FIXTURE CUT SHEET

MKT-4482
1200 LED Luminaire
RWS
5 November 2018

26.00 in
(660 mm)

25.00 in
(635 mm)

24.00 in
(610 mm)

19.00 in
(483 mm)

 

Luminaire Data
Weight (luminaire) 45 lb (20 kg)

UL listing number E338094

UL listed for USA / Canada UL1598 CSA-C22.2 
No.250.0

CE Declaration LVD, EMC, RoHS

Ingress protection, luminaire IP65

Impact rating IK07

Material and finish Aluminum, powder-coat 
painted

Wind speed rating (aiming only) 150 mi/h (67 m/s)

UL, IEC ambient temperature 
rating, luminaire

50°C (122°F)

 
Photometric Characteristics

Projected lumen maintenance per IES TM-21-11

L90 (20k) >120,000 h

L80 (20k) >120,000 h

L70 (20k) >120,000 h

Lumens1 136,000

CIE correlated color temperature 5700 K

Color rendering index (CRI) 75 typ, 70 min

LED binning tolerance 7-step MacAdam Ellipse

Footnotes:

1) Incorporates appropriate dirt depreciation factor for life of luminaire.

U.S. and foreign patent(s) issued and pending  •  ©2019, 2020 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC-LED-1200 5700K 75 CRI  •  M-2943-en04-5

Datasheet: TLC-LED-1200 Luminaire and Driver

www.musco.com  ·  lighting@musco.com

1

TLC-LED-1200 5700K 75 CRI Standard Fixture View Datasheet Global M-2943-
en04-5



SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN 2.13

MKT-4431-1
900 LED Luminaire wiring
Schiederwerk Driver
RWS
20 March 2018

+
−

Fuse

FuseL1

L2*

Surge†

protection

Disconnect
Driver

Controller
(if present)

* If L2 (com) is neutral then not switched or fused.
†  Not present if indoor installation.

Luminaire

Typical WiringDriver Data

Electrical Data

Rated wattage1

Per driver 1170 W

Per luminaire 1170 W

Number of luminaires per driver 1

Starting (inrush) current <40 A, 256 µs

Fuse rating 15 A

UL, IEC ambient temperature rating, 
electrical components enclosure

50°C (122°F)

Ingress protection, electrical 
components enclosure

IP54

Efficiency 95%

Dimming mode optional

Range, energy consumption 14 – 100%

Range, light output 19 – 100%

Flicker <2%

Total harmonic distortion (THD) at full 
output

<20%

200 Vac 208 Vac 220 Vac 230 Vac 240 Vac 277 Vac 347 Vac 380 Vac 400 Vac 415 Vac 480 Vac

50/60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50/60 Hz 60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50 Hz 60 Hz
 
Max operating current per 
luminaire2 7.26 A 6.98 A 6.60 A 6.31 A 6.05 A 5.24 A 4.18 A 3.82 A 3.63 A 3.50 A 3.03 A

Footnotes:

1) Rated wattage is the power consumption, including driver efficiency losses, 
at stabilized operation in 25°C ambient temperature environment.

2) Operating current includes allowance for 0.90 minimum power factor, 
operating temperature, and LED light source manufacturing tolerances.

Notes

1. Use thermal magnetic HID-rated or D-curve circuit breakers.

2. See Musco Control System Summary for circuit information.

 

U.S. and foreign patent(s) issued and pending •  ©2019, 2020 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC-LED-1200 5700K 75 CRI  •  M-2943-en04-5

Datasheet: TLC-LED-1200 Luminaire and Driver

www.musco.com  ·  lighting@musco.com

2



2.14 SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN

Luminaire and Driver – TLC-BT-575

 

All components from foundation to poletop are designed to work together 
in Light-Structure System™ to ensure reliable, trouble-free operation.

Luminaire Data
Weight (luminaire) 34 lb (15 kg)

UL listing number E338094

UL listed for USA/Canada UL1598 CSA-C22.2 No.250.0

CE Declaration LVD, EMC, RoHS

Ingress protection (luminaire) IP65

Impact rating IK07

Material and finish Aluminum, powder-coat 
painted

Wind speed rating (aiming only) 150 mi/h (67 m/s)

UL, IEC ambient temperature rating (luminaire) 50°C (122°F)

Photometric Characteristics

Projected lumen maintenance per IES TM-21-11

L90 (20k) >120,000 h

L80 (20k) >120,000 h

L70 (20k) >120,000 h

Lumens1 52,000

CIE correlated color temperature 5700 K

Color rendering index (CRI) 75 typ, 70 min

LED binning tolerance 7-step MacAdam Ellipse

Footnotes:

1) Incorporates appropriate dirt depreciation factor for life of luminaire.

U.S. and foreign patent(s) issued and pending  •  2022 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC-BT-575 5700K 75 CRI  •  M-2477-en04-6 

Datasheet: Light-Structure System™

www.musco.com  ·  lighting@musco.com

1

TLC-BT-575 5700K 75 CRI Standard System View Datasheet Global M-2477-en04-6 



SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN 2.15

+
−

Fuse

FuseL1

L2*

Surge†

protection

Disconnect
Driver

Controller
(if present)

* If L2 is neutral then not switched or fused.
†  Not present if indoor installation.

Luminaire

Luminaire and Driver – TLC-BT-575
Typical WiringDriver Data

Electrical Data
Rated wattage1

Per driver 575 W

Per luminaire 575 W

Number of luminaires per driver 1

Starting (inrush) current <40 A, 256 µs

Fuse rating 15 A

UL, IEC ambient temperature rating, 
electrical components enclosure

50°C (122°F)

Ingress protection, electrical 
components enclosure

IP54

Efficiency 95%

Total harmonic distortion (THD) at 
full output 

<20%

200 Vac 208 Vac 220 Vac 230 Vac 240 Vac 277 Vac 347 Vac 380 Vac 400 Vac 415 Vac 480 Vac

50/60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50/60 Hz 60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50 Hz 60 Hz
Max operating current 
per luminaire2

3.48 A 3.35 A 3.16 A 3.03 A 2.90 A 2.51 A 2.01 A 1.83 A 1.74 A 1.68 A 1.45 A

Footnotes:

1) Rated wattage is the power consumption, including driver efficiency losses, at stabilized operation in 25°C ambient temperature environment.

2) Operating current includes allowance for 0.90 minimum power factor, operating temperature, and LED light source manufacturing tolerances.

Notes

1. Use thermal magnetic HID-rated or D-curve circuit breakers.

2. See Musco Control System Summary for circuit information.

21.00 in
(533 mm)

26.00 in
(660 mm)

19.00 in
(483 mm)

16.00 in
(406 mm)

U.S. and foreign patent(s) issued and pending  •  2022 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC-BT-575 5700K 75 CRI  •  M-2477-en04-6 

Datasheet: Light-Structure System™

www.musco.com  ·  lighting@musco.com

2



2.16 SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN

10.47 in
266 mm

11.72 in
298 mm

25.75 in
654 mm

8.57 in
218 mm

Luminaire Data
Weight (luminaire) 40 lb (18 kg)

UL listing number E338094

UL listed for USA / Canada UL 1598 
CSA-C22-2 No.250.0

Ingress protection (luminaire) IP65

Impact rating IK07

Material and finish Aluminum, 
powder-coat painted

Wind speed rating (aiming only) 150 mi/h (67 m/s)

UL ambient temperature 
rating (luminaire)

50°C (122°F)

 
Photometric Characteristics
Lumens1, amber 17,500

Lumens1, red 8000

Lumens1, green 20,000

Lumens1, blue 8000

Footnotes:

1) Incorporates appropriate dirt depreciation factor for life of luminaire.

U.S. and foreign patent(s) pending  •  ©2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC for LED® RGBA-U  •  M-5043-en04-1

Datasheet: TLC for LED® RGBA-U Luminaire and Driver

www.musco.com   ·   lighting@musco.com

1



SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN 2.17

+
−

Fuse

Disconnect

Driver 1 Controller

Luminaire

Driver 2

Driver 3

Driver 4

L1

L2 *

8 Wires

* If L2 is neutral then not switched or fused.

Typical WiringDriver Data
Electrical Data
Rated wattage1

Per luminaire, max 640 W

Number of drivers per luminaire 4

Starting (inrush) current 106 A, 5 ms

Fuse rating 20 A

UL, IEC ambient temperature rating 
(electrical components enclosure)

50°C (122°F)

Ingress protection 
(electrical components enclosure)

IP54

Efficiency 94%

Dimming mode optional

Range, energy consumption varies by color

Range, light output varies by color

200 Vac 208 Vac 220 Vac 230 Vac 240 Vac 277 Vac 347 Vac 480 Vac

50/60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50/60 Hz 60 Hz 60 Hz 60 Hz

Max operating current 
per luminaire2 3.56 A 3.44 A 3.24 A 3.08 A 2.96 A 2.56 A 2.04 A 1.48 A

Footnotes:

1) Rated wattage is the power consumption, including driver efficiency losses, at stabilized operation in 25°C ambient temperature environment.

2) Operating current includes allowance for power factor, operating temperature, and LED light source manufacturing tolerances.

Notes

1. Use thermal magnetic HID-rated or D-curve circuit breakers.

2. See Musco Control System Summary for circuit information.

U.S. and foreign patent(s) pending  •  ©2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC for LED® RGBA-U  •  M-5043-en04-1

Datasheet: TLC for LED® RGBA-U Luminaire and Driver

www.musco.com   ·   lighting@musco.com

2



2.18 SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN

Luminaire and Driver – TLC-LED-1500

MKT-4488
1500 LED Cover Illustration
RWS
7 November 2018

 

All components from foundation to poletop are designed to work 
together in Light-Structure System™ to ensure reliable, trouble-free 
operation.

Luminaire Data
Weight (luminaire) 67 lb (30 kg)

UL listing number E338094

UL listed for USA/Canada UL1598 CSA-C22.2 No.250.0

CE Declaration LVD, EMC, RoHS

Ingress protection (luminaire) IP65

Impact rating IK07

Material and finish Aluminum, powder-coat 
painted

Wind speed rating (aiming only) 150 mi/h (67 m/s)

UL, IEC ambient temperature rating 
(luminaire)

50°C (122°F)

Photometric Characteristics

Projected lumen maintenance per IES TM-21-11

L90 (20k) >120,000 h

L80 (20k) >120,000 h

L70 (20k) >120,000 h

Lumens1 160,000

CIE correlated color temperature 5700 K

Color rendering index (CRI) 75 typ, 70 min

LED binning tolerance 7-step MacAdam Ellipse

Footnotes:

1) Incorporates appropriate dirt depreciation factor for life of luminaire.

U.S. and foreign patent(s) issued and pending  •  2019, 2021 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC-LED-1500 5700K 75 CRI  •  M-2979-en04-4 

Datasheet: Light-Structure System™

www.musco.com  ·  lighting@musco.com

1

TLC-LED-1500 5700K 75 CRI Standard System View Datasheet Global M-2979-
en04-4 



SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN 2.19

+
−

Fuse

FuseL1

L2*

Surge†

protection

Disconnect
Driver

Controller
(if present)

* If L2 is neutral then not switched or fused.
†  Not present if indoor installation.

Luminaire

Luminaire and Driver – TLC-LED-1500
Typical WiringDriver Data

Electrical Data
Rated wattage1

Per driver 1430 W

Per luminaire 1430 W

Number of luminaires per driver 1

Starting (inrush) current <40 A, 256 µs

Fuse rating 15 A

UL, IEC ambient temperature rating, 
electrical components enclosure

50°C (122°F)

Ingress protection, electrical 
components enclosure

IP54

Efficiency 95%

Dimming mode optional

Range, energy consumption 12 – 100%

Range, light output 17 – 100%

Flicker <2%

Total harmonic distortion (THD) at full 
output

<20%

200 Vac 208 Vac 220 Vac 230 Vac 240 Vac 277 Vac 347 Vac 380 Vac 400 Vac 415 Vac 480 Vac

50/60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50/60 Hz 60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50 Hz 60 Hz

Max operating current 
per luminaire2 8.86 A 8.52 A 8.06 A 7.71 A 7.39 A 6.40 A 5.11 A 4.67 A 4.43 A 4.27 A 3.70 A

22.00 in
(559 mm)

27.00 in
(686 mm)

23.00 in
(584 mm)

26.00 in
(660 mm)

Footnotes:

1) Rated wattage is the power consumption, including driver efficiency losses, at stabilized operation in 25°C ambient temperature environment.

2) Operating current includes allowance for 0.90 minimum power factor, operating temperature, and LED light source manufacturing tolerances.

Notes

1. Use thermal magnetic HID-rated or D-curve circuit breakers.

2. See Musco Control System Summary for circuit information.

U.S. and foreign patent(s) issued and pending  •  2019, 2021 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC-LED-1500 5700K 75 CRI  •  M-2979-en04-4 

Datasheet: Light-Structure System™

www.musco.com  ·  lighting@musco.com

2



2.20 SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN

20.00 in
(508 mm)

12.00 in
(305 mm)

21.50 in
(546 mm)

26.00 in
(660 mm)

Luminaire Data
 Weight (luminaire) 40 lb (18 kg)

UL listing number E338094

UL listed for USA / Canada UL 1598 CSA-C22-2 
No.250.0

Ingress protection, luminaire IP65

Impact rating IK07

Material and finish Aluminum, powder-coat 
painted

Wind speed rating (aiming only) 150 mi/h (67 m/s)

UL ambient temperature rating, 
luminaire

50°C (122°F)

 
Photometric Characteristics

Projected lumen maintenance per IES TM-21-11

L90 (20k) (white only) >120,000 h

L80 (20k) (white only) >120,000 h

L70 (20k) (white only) >120,000 h

CIE correlated color temperature 
(white only)

5700 K

Color rendering index (CRI) 
(white only)

75 typ, 70 min

Lumens1, white 28,500

Lumens1, red 8,000

Lumens1, green 20,000

Lumens1, blue 8,000

LED binning tolerance 7-step MacAdam Ellipse 
(white LEDs only)

Footnotes:

1) Incorporates appropriate dirt depreciation factor for life of luminaire.

  U.S. and foreign patent(s) pending  •  ©2108, 2020 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC for LED® RGBW  •  M-2710-en04-4

Datasheet: TLC for LED® RGBW Luminaire and Driver

www.musco.com   ·   lighting@musco.com

1



SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN 2.21

MKT-4431_B
TLC-LED-RGB

KLA, MMR
7-17-2020

+
−Fuse

Disconnect

Driver 1

Controller

Luminaire

*If L2 is neutral then not switched or fused.

Driver 2

Driver 3

Driver 4

L1

L2*
8 Wires

Typical WiringDriver Data

Electrical Data

Rated wattage1

Per luminaire, max 640 W

Number of drivers per luminaire 4

Starting (inrush) current 106 A, 5 ms

Fuse rating 20 A

UL, IEC ambient temperature rating, 
electrical components enclosure

50°C (122°F)

Ingress protection,  
electrical components enclosure

IP54

Efficiency 94%

Dimming mode optional

Range, energy consumption varies by color

Range, light output varies by color

200 Vac 208 Vac 220 Vac 230 Vac 240 Vac 277 Vac 347 Vac 480 Vac

50/60 Hz 60 Hz 50/60 Hz 50 Hz 50/60 Hz 60 Hz 60 Hz 60 Hz
 
Max operating current per 
luminaire2 

3.56 A 3.44 A 3.24 A 3.08 A 2.96 A 2.56 A 2.04 A 1.48 A

Footnotes:

1) Rated wattage is the power consumption, including driver efficiency losses, 
at stabilized operation in 25°C ambient temperature environment.

2) Operating current includes allowance for power factor, operating 
temperature, and LED light source manufacturing tolerances.

Notes

1. Use thermal magnetic HID-rated or D-curve circuit breakers.

2. See Musco Control System Summary for circuit information.

  U.S. and foreign patent(s) pending  •  ©2108, 2020 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC  •  TLC for LED® RGBW  •  M-2710-en04-4

Datasheet: TLC for LED® RGBW Luminaire and Driver

www.musco.com   ·   lighting@musco.com

2









2.22 SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN

ATHLETIC FIELD LIGHT RENDERINGS
Loyola Academy High School Football Field Rendering 

 

 

 

 



SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN 2.23

 

 

 



2.24 SECTION 2: LIGHTING PLAN

 

 

 

 

























Report to the Appearance Review Commission 

from the  

Department of Community Development 

 

Case Number: 2024-AR-04 

 

 

Property: 1837 Wilmette Avenue 

 

 

Zoning District: NR, Neighborhood Retail Business 

 

 

Petitioner: Wilmette Gas Inc. 

 

 

Request:   The petitioner requests an Appearance Review Certificate for 

exterior lighting and roof modifications and variations from the 

sign ordinance to display a non-conforming ground sign, four 

non-conforming pump island signs, non-conforming column 

signage with interchangeable advertising and non-conforming 

pump topper signage with interchangeable advertising. 

 

 

Applicable Provisions of 5.5 Sign Variations 

Ordinances: Table 16.1 Sign Types Permitted by District 

16.9(l) Signs Not Requiring a Permit - Informational Matter 

16.10(d) Ground Signs 

 16.10(j)Wall Signs 

 

Meeting Date:    March 7, 2024 

 

 

Date of Application: February 5, 2024 

 

 

Notices: Legal Notice published in Wilmette Life February 15, 2024 

Certificate of Posting dated February 20, 2024 

Personal Notice Affidavit dated February 12, 2024 

 

 

Report Prepared By: Kate McManus 

 Planner III - AICP 

 

 

 

 



Case 2024-AR-04 

 1837 Wilmette Avenue 

 

2 

 

Description of Property 

 

The Subject Property is located on the southeast corner of Ridge Road and Wilmette Avenue. The property 

has approximately 103’ of frontage on Ridge Road and approximately 104’ of frontage on Wilmette 

Avenue. The property is approximately 11,517 square feet in area. The property is improved with a one-

story gas station and two gas pump canopies.  

 

  To the east are townhomes and single-family homes and to the west, south and north are commercial and 

multi-family residential. A gas station is located just west of the property. 

 

Proposal 

 

Appearance Review Certificate 

Lighting 

The petitioner is proposing to install four flat copy lights per canopy for a total of eight canopy lights. 

Two shoebox lights are proposed on the east elevation of the building. The fixture temperature ranges 

from 4000k-5700k. Please note that all light fixtures have been installed without approvals or permits 

and are visible on site to review. The proposed lighting exceeds .5-foot candles at the lot line and exceeds 

10-foot candles under the pump canopies and therefore requires variations from the Zoning Board of 

Appeals. The variation request will be heard on March 20th.  

 

Roof Modifications 

The applicant is proposing to modify the existing roof structure. The existing mansard asphalt roof will 

be modified with ACM panels. The applicant has not provided information on the installation of the 

modified roof. The proposed ACM panels have blue and white applied vinyl.  

 

Site Improvements 

General site improvements are proposed including the installation of amenity bins at each pump location 

and painting of existing pump islands and bollards where needed.  

 

Signage 

The petitioner requests variations from the sign ordinance to display a non-conforming ground sign, four non-

conforming pump island signs, non-conforming column signage with interchangeable advertising and non-

conforming pump topper signage. 

 

Ground Sign 

The existing ground sign is proposed to be converted to a digital sign to display gas prices. The existing 

sign is non-conforming in height and size, so a variation is required. Ground signs are limited to 10 feet 

in height in this zoning district and 30 square feet in area; the proposed sign is 15 feet in height and 32.8 

square feet. The existing ground sign is located in the right-of-way and the Village’s Engineering 

Department has approved retaining the sign in its current location.  

 

Wall sign 

A conforming wall sign is proposed on the modified roof structure at the northwest corner of the building. 

The sign is approximately 6 square feet and occupies 15% of the signable area. The proposed wall sign is 

vinyl applied directly to the ACM roof panels. 



Case 2024-AR-04 

 1837 Wilmette Avenue 

 

3 

 

Pump Island Signs 

The Village’s sign regulations allow an automobile service station to display one (1) sign, no larger than 

nine (9) square feet, above each pump island stating whether the area is a "self service" or "full service" 

area and the current price per gallon of gasoline sold at the station. 

 

The petitioner proposes signage on each pump island consisting of the Mobile logo above the pump and 

Fuel Technology Synergy and the Mobile logo at the base of each pump, necessitating a variation from 

the sign ordinance. The digital display screen and fuel types are exempt from the sign ordinance as they 

are considered information matter.  

 

Column Signage 

Under each canopy, an aluminum wave and column with signage are proposed. Signage is proposed on 

each feature including the Mobile logo and interchangeable poster areas on the wave, a double-sided 

“Synergy” blade sign with the Mobile logo capping each column and wave, and a message board on each 

column. The poster areas and message boards will be interchangeable advertisements. All signage on the 

columns and waves necessitates a sign variation.  

 

There are double sided number wedges on each column identifying the pump. The number wedges are 

considered informational matter and are exempt from the sign ordinance. 

 

Pump Topper Signage 

Signage is proposed above each pump. The sign is approximately 10 x 20 inches and will have 

interchangeable messaging. The proposed pump topper signage and advertisement requires a variation 

from the sign ordinance.  

 

Action Required 

The Appearance Review Commission can grant an Appearance Review Certificate provided the proposal 

meets the following standards of review: 

 

Appearance Review Certificate Standards of Review 

 

1. All sides of a structure receive design consideration. 

 

2. If the side or rear of the structure faces a street, a residential use, or a property located in a 

residential zoning district, the exterior materials used on the side or rear are comparable in 

character and quality to the exterior materials used on the facade of the structure. 

 

3. Materials used in the construction and design of the structure are of durable quality. 

 

4. Mechanical equipment is located or screened so as not to be visible from surrounding streets 

and properties.  

 

5. The scale and placement of the structure on the site is appropriate to the proportion of the site 

covered by the structure and the location of the structure in relation to its lot lines. 

 



Case 2024-AR-04 

 1837 Wilmette Avenue 

 

4 

6. Building design and placement must take into consideration natural grade conditions, existing 

vegetation, and other natural features. 

 

7. Excessive similarity or dissimilarity in design in relation to surrounding or adjoining 

structures is discouraged, including but not limited to building height, exterior materials, 

building mass, roof line, and architectural features. 

 

8. Design takes into consideration the relationship to the street and the pedestrian environment. 

 

9. Parking, storage, and refuse areas are located and screened so as not to negatively affect 

neighboring properties. 

 

10. Landscape is designed to maintain existing mature trees and shrubs to the maximum extent 

possible. 

 

11. Landscape provides an aesthetically pleasing design and, where applicable, provides for the 

screening of parking, storage, refuse, and utility areas from the street and adjacent residential 

properties. 

 

12. Selected plant materials shall be suitable to Wilmette’s climate and to their location on the 

site. The use of invasive species is prohibited. Invasive species shall be those included in the 

“Chicago Botanic Garden” list of “Invasive Plants in the Chicago Region.” 

 

13. Parking areas are designed to achieve efficient traffic flow and minimize dangerous traffic 

movements. 

 

14. Signs are of the appropriate design, color and placement to the structure, site and adjoining 

properties, in terms of materials, height, setback from the street, and proportion. 

 

15. Accessory structures, exterior lighting and fences, complement the overall structure and site 

design, in terms of materials, size, and architectural character. 

 

16. For new two-unit dwellings, review is limited to whether or not the proposed structure 

maintains the external appearance of a single-family dwelling. 

 

Action Required 

The Appearance Review Commission can recommend granting the sign variation provided the proposal 

meets the following standards of review: 

 

Sign Variation Standards of Review 
 

Unusual Circumstances: 

A variation will serve to relieve the petitioner from an unusual difficulty due to the location, 

topography, or circumstances on the petitioner’s property or a peculiar attribute existing on the 

neighboring property, which directly affects the petitioner’s property. 
 

Character and Appearance: 



Case 2024-AR-04 

 1837 Wilmette Avenue 

 

5 

A variation will be consistent in design and scale with other signs nearby and will not alter the 

essential character of the commercial streetscape in the vicinity of the subject property. 

 

Not Self-Created: 

The plight of the property owner was not created by the owner and denial of the variation will impose 

undue hardship or difficulty on the owner’s ability to conduct business on the subject property. 

 

Health, Safety and Welfare: 

A variation will not create a traffic or safety hazard and will not impair the utility of 

neighboring properties’ signage. 

 

Purpose of Ordinance: 

A variation is in harmony with the purpose and intent of the Sign Ordinance. 

 

Case File Documents 

Location Maps and Plans 

 

2.1 Aerial Map 

2.2 Plat of Survey 

2.3 Submittal Packet Dated February 16, 2024 

2.4 Canopy Light Specification 

2.5 LED Shoebox Light Specification 

2.6 Photometric Plan 

2.7 Images of Installed Light Fixtures 

2.8 Reynobond ACM Data Sheet 

2.9 ACM Safety Sheet 

 

 

 



1837 Wilmette Avenue

NotesPrint Date: 2/29/20240 150 300
ft

Disclaimer: The GIS Consortium and MGP Inc. are not liable for any use, misuse, modification or disclosure of any map provided under applicable law.  This map is for general information purposes only. Although the

information is believed to be generally accurate, errors may exist and the user should independently confirm for accuracy. The map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering

design. A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine precise location boundaries on the ground.
















































































































	ADP7BEC.tmp
	MEETING MINUTES
	Appearance Review Commission




